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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members of Quintillion Media Limited (formerly known as Quintillion Media Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Quintillion Media Limited
(formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafier referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the
atoresaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(*the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the [CAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matter
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.




All(litOl"Sil(:SpOllse

Sr | Key Audit Matter
No
| Control evaluation and sale of non-current | Our audit with respect to control evaluation

investment in a subsidiary:

As disclosed in Note 37 [Sale of stake in a
subsidiary  -Quintillion  Business  Media
Limited note] to the standalone financial
statements, the Company has acquired 25.97%
from its existing investor at USD 1 and then
subsequently sold its 49% investment on
March 27, 2023 to a new investor for a
consideration of Rs 4,783.74 Lacs, pursuant to
sharcholders agreement dated May 13, 2022,
executed in this regard. Further, as per the
terms of such agreement, all future funding
required by the subsidiary company is to be
borne by the new investor.

We placed specific focus on the following
matters:

(a) Management’s assessment of control in
partially-owned subsidiary involved significant
Judgement in accordance with Ind AS 110,
Consolidated Financial Statements (‘Ind AS
110%) post sale of 49% stake in the subsidiary
to the new investor. Such assessment included
determining Company’s exposure to variable

Creturns from its involvement in such Company

and its ability 1o affect those returns through its
power over such Company, by referring to
contractual and other rights and obligations of
the Company and the new investor.
Determination of power requires the Company
to assess its ability to direct the relevant

L activities of such subsidiary company: and

(b) Calculation of loss and the proportionate
reversal of the impairment provision in respect
to sale of 49% stake in the subsidiary
company, including the rationale for the
difference in valuation between the acquisition
from existing investor and sale of stake to new
investor,

The amounts involved are significant to the
standalone financial statements and due to
complex arrangements at different valuations,
the same is considered as a key audit matter in
the current year audit.

and sale of non-current investments in
subsidiary, included but were not limited to
the following procedures:

(a) Discussed with the management to
understand  their process of determining
control and resultant calculations of loss upon
sale of'its 49% stake in one of its subsidiaries.

(b) Evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of the internal controls
over the process.

(¢) Reviewed the shareholders agreement
(including affirmative rights), minutes of the
board  meetings, etc. and  evaluated
management assessment of control under Ind
AS 110, and management’s evaluation of
rights of the new investor to determine
whether such rights are protective or
substantive in nature,

(d) Read minutes of meetings of Board of
Directors of the Company and reviewed the
management’s rationale for sale.

(e¢) Verified and validated the data and
underlying calculation of loss and the
proportionate  reversal of provision for
diminution in the carrying value of the
investment in the subsidiary.

() Understood from the management the
rationale for difference between valuation for
acquisition of stake from erstwhile/existing
investor and the valuation at which the new
investor has acquired 49% stake in the
subsidiary company.

(2)Assessed the appropriateness of disclosures
made in the standalone financial statements in
accordance  with  the requirements of
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.




Other Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder’s Information. but does not include the standalone financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of management for the standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.




As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due o fraud or crror, design and perform audi procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company fo cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in cvaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.




Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the “Annexure-A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the

extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

<

b)

c)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account.

In-our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 ol the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis ol the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
clfeetiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting: and

With respect (o the other matters (o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of
the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 1T of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The company did not have any long term contract including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses, and

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investors education and
protection fund by the company.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the company (o or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneliciaries; )

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether. directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of -
Beneliciaries; <%
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(¢) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule I'1(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material mis-statement.

5. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

6. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which
use accounting software for maintaining their- books of account, to use such an accounting
software which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on |
April 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 1 I(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules. 2014 (as amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For ASDJ & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No-033477N

Mliclsk fulg

Abhishek Sinha

(Partner)

M. No. 504550

UDIN: 23504550BGXI1BZ7822

Date: 30 May 2023
Place: Noida



Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the company
on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2023, under the heading “Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”, we report that:

()

(1)

(111

(a)(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals; no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification and thus, the
same is not required to be dealt with in the books of account;

(¢ ) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and
based on the examination, we report that, in respect of immovable properties of land and
building there have been no assets taken on lease and thus disclosure as fixed assets in the

financial statements is not required.

Description | Gross Held in | Whether promoter, | Period Reason  for
of property | carrying | name of director or | held indicate not being

value their  relative or | range, held in name
R | employee __ | where appropriate | of company*
NA NA NA [ NA NA | NA

(d) There is no revaluation in Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the year and, so, the clause is not applicable to the Company;
(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules
made thercunder, and so, the disclosure in its financial statements is not required;

(a) The Company does not have any physical inventories. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in
excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets; and filing of the quarterly returns or statements by the company
with such banks or financial institutions are not required. Thus, the clause is not applicable to
the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us, during the year the company has made
investments in equity shares of a subsidiary company of Rs 54,500,084/-, and other than that
it had not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other

partics. Accordingly:

(a) During the year the company has not provided loans or provided advances in the nature of
loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity thus this clause of the order
is not applicable.

(b) Investments in equity shares made in a subsidiary Company, are not prejudicial to the
company’s interest. Other than that there are no guarantees provided and security given
during the vear by the Company;

(¢) The Company has not provided any loans and advances in the nature of loans, thus this
clause of the order is not applicable.:




(V)

(VD)

(VID)

VIII)

1X)

(d) The Company has not provided any loans and advances, thus no amount is overdue, for
more than ninety days;

(e) The Company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, thus this
clause of the order is not applicable.;

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to Promoters,
related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 thus this

clause of the order is not applicable.;

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the company has not
granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any investments
to which the provision of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (iv) of the order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year which are
covered under the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or under the provisions of
Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under,
therefore the provisions of paragraph 3(v) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,2020
are not applicable to the company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the company. Thus, paragraph 3(vi) of
the order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities and
other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year by the
company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees” state insurance, income-tax,
sales- (ax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, there are no dues of income-tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of account and have
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 of 1961), thus this clause is not applicable to the Company;

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and records examined by us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks, financial institutions and
government and is not declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender.

(b) The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained;

(¢) There were no funds raised on short term basis which have been utilised for long term
purposes;

(d) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures; o
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(¢) The company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies;

(X) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public

offer (including debt instruments) and has not taken any term loans during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) of the order is not applicable.
(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year and so, the
requirements of compliance of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
required. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the order is not applicable.

(XI)  (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given (o
us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(¢) There are no whistleblower complaints received during the year by the company;

(XIT)  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore the, Provisions of clause
3(xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(X)) In our opinion, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements (Refer Note No 28) as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(XIV) (a) The company does have an internal audit system and the internal audit is conducted by an
independent internal auditors;
(b) The internal audit reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit was
considered by us, the statutory auditors, and no material adverse comments were found to be
reported.

(XV)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them during the year
under audit. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the order are not applicable to the
company.

(XVI1) (a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act,1934. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the order are
not applicable to the company.

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934:

(¢) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group,

(XVII) The company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year, and has cash losses of Rs 125,82 Lacs during the current financial year (previous

vear ended 31 March 22 Rs. 18.68 Lacs):

(XVIII) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.




(XIX) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of tinancial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date; ‘

(XX) (a) The Company does not meet eligibility criterion thus transfer to CSR fund under Section 135
is not required. Accordingly, this clause is not applicable to the Company.

(b) There arc no amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Companies Act; Accordingly, this clause is not applicable to the Company

(XXI) This is the standalone financial statement and the auditors of subsidiary companies have not
given any qualification or adverse remarks in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order
(CARO) reports of the companies to be included in the consolidated financial statements.

For ASDJ & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.- 033477N

Wlidal fla

Abhishek Sinha

(Partner)

M. No. 504550

UDIN: 23504550BGXIBZ7822

Date: 30 May 2023
Place: Noida



Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of Quintillion Media Limited (formerly known as Quintillion Media

Private Limited) of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub —
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Quintillion Media Limited
(formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited) (“the Company™) as at March 31, 2023, in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the
[nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing prescribed under Section
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those standards and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness ol internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement in the [inancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial reporting.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of th are being




made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (iii)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.
Limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For ASDJ & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.- 033477N

—J(H,Qt& [JLL:K‘%[Q,__

Abhishek Sinha

(Partner)

M. No. 504550

UDIN: 23504550BGXIBZ7822

Date: 30 May 2023
Place: Noida



Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023
(All amount in 2'000, unless stated otherwise)

. As at As at
Particulars Notes 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4A 229.16 399.52
Intangible assets 4B - s
Financial asscts

Investments 5A 6,04,288.68 8,52,059.04
Other financial assets 6A 2,183.79 6,522.19
Income tax assets (net) if 7,342.05 9,208.62
Total non-current assets 6,14,043.68 8,68,189.37
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 5B 4,10,318.41 -
Trade receivables 8 - s
Cash and cash equivalents 9 2,208.89 245.93
Loans 10 - -
Other financial assets 6B - 1,441.89
Other current assets 11 3,162.67 2,533.58
Total current assets 4,15,689.97 4,221.40
Total assets 10,29,733.65 8,72,410.77
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 8,50,000.00 8,50,000.00
Other equity 13 1,76,628.13 13,371.66
Total equity 10,26,628.13 8,63,371.66
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14A 113.32 127.13
Provisions 15A 1,715.59 162.20
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities 1,828.91 289.33
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14B - 8,253.21
Trade payables 16 679.29 368.03
Other financial liabilities 17 118.04 44,87
Other current liabilities 18 434.02 78.41
Provisions 158 45.26 5.26
Total current liabilities 1,276.61 8,749.78
Total liabilities 3,105.52 9,039.11
Total Equity and Liabilities 10,29,733.65 8,72,410.77
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For ASD] & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Quintillion Mgdia Limited C/
Firm Registration No.: 033477N ~ Q/
‘( ‘&—/ / .
_%L\l—chﬁ' i Vandana Malik \l\l\ h Jai
yush Jain
Abhishek Sinha Divector Director
Partner DIN: 00036382 DIN:02466244
Membership No. 504550 by
UIDIN: 23504550BGXIBZ7822 \Y) " )\&0
NS
Vivek Agarwal Vidhi Kiarbanda
Place: Noida Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date : 30 May 2023 M. No.: 15285



Quintillion Medra Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

{All amount in '000, unless stated otherwisce)

Particul Note Year ended Year ended
aracwars 9 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022

Income
Revenue from operations 19 - -
Other income 20 687.59 30,565.88
Total income 687.59 30,565.88
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 21 3,259.94 L3127
Finance cost 22 1,037.19 466.38
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 170.36 170.36
Other expenses 24 8,41,532.62 6,184.42
Total expenses 8,46,000.11 8,052.41
Profit /(Loss) before exceptional items and tax -8,45,312.52 22,513.47
Exceptional items 25
Diminution in value of investment in subsidiary - 6,472.24
Write back of provision for diminution in subsidiary -10,08,531.13
Profit before tax 1,63,218.61 16,041.23
Tax expenses
(a) Current tax - -
(b) Deferred tax = =
Profit for the year 1,63,218.61 16,041.23
Other comprehensive income (OCT)
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset, net 37.86 254.98

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(b) Ttems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Total other comprehensive income for the year 37.86 254.98
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,63,256.47 16,296.21
Earnings per equity share 26
Basic () 1.92 0.19
Diluted R) 1.92 0.19
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For ASD]J & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors C\/
Chartered Accountants Quintillion Media Limited -
Iirm Registration No.: 033477N . L\'

v
\AJ}L; Lih ; . ;
Vandana Malik Piyush Jain

Abhishek Sinha Director Ditector
Partner IDIN: 00036382 DIN:02466244

Membership No. 504550
UDIN: 23504550BGX1BZ27822

Place: Noida
Date : 30 May 2023

o

Vivek Agarwal
Chief I"inancial Officer

Vidhi Kharbanda
Company Sccretary
M. No.: 15285



Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amount in 2000, unless stated othenvise)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March, 2023 31 March, 2022
A.  Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before taxation 1,63,218.61 16,041.23
Adjustments for non cash expenses and Item shown separately:
Depreciation 170.36 170.36
Diminution in value of non current investment - 6,472.24
Exces provision written back -10,08,531.13 -27,485.14
Profit on sale of non-current investments - -14.61
Loss on sale of non-current investments 8,32,427.09 2,499.75
Fair value gain on investment -332.91 -
Interest mcome -328.18 -2,850.67
Interest expense on borrowings 1,037.19 466.38
Operating profit before working capital changes -12,338.97 -4,700.46
Movement in other non-current financial assets 4,338.40 -522.19
Movement in other current assets -629.09 -
Movement in other current financial assets 1,441.89 -140.35
Movement in trade receivable - 4,312.50
Movement in provisions 1,631.25 -13.99
Movement in trade payable 311.26 -4,527.73
Movement in Financial liabilities 7317 -339.55
Movement in other liabilities 355.61 -211.65
Cash generated from operations -4,816.48 -6,143.42
Income tax (paid) /refund 1,866.57 -324.96
Net cash flows from operating activities (A) -2,949.91 -6,468.38
B.  Cash flows from investing activities
Sale of stake in a subsidiary 4,78,374.48 -
Purchase of investments in a subsidiary -54,500.08 -1,15,314.39
Purchase of investments in Mutual Fund -4,09,985.50 -
Sale of other investments - 27,500.00
Interest received 314.37 807.30
Net cash flows from investing activities (B) 14,203.27 -87,007.09
C.  Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of Long term borrowings - -26,371.67
Repayment of Short term borrowings (ner) -8,253.21 1,15,400.00
Proceeds from Issue of Compulsory convertible debentures - 3,81,000.00
Proceeds of Optionally convertible debentures - -3,76,500.00
Interest paid -1,037.19 -616.08
Net cash flows from financing activities (©) -9,290.40 92,912.25
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,962.96 -563.22
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 245.93 809.15
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,208.89 245.93
Comprises:
() Cash in hand 5.03 4.06
(b) Balances with banks
() In current accounts 2,203.86 241.87
(i) In deposit accounts = =
2,208.89 245.93

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

As per our report of even date
For ASD] & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 033477N

J‘}DLA &LQL_AC(L

Abhishek Sinha

Partner

Membership No. 504550
UDIN: 23504550BGXIBZ7822

FRNOITTN)

Place: Noida
Date : 30 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Quintillion Media Limited

Vandana Malik
Dircctor
DIN: 00036382

~ .

—
Vivek Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

Piyush Jain

Director
DIN:02466244

Vidhi
Company Secretary
M. No.: 15285

harbanda
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Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

1

2

—

2.2

Reporting entity

The 'Company' was incorporated as Quintillion Media Private Limited on 23 August 2014 under the Companies Act, 2013. The objective of the Company is to
carry on the business of running websites through web, digital or mobile media and which may include various information including current affairs, lifestyle,
entertainment ete. The CIN of the Company is U74999DL.2014PLC270795. During the current year the name of the Company was changed to Quintillion

Media Limited.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities which have been measured at
fair value amount. The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting standards (‘Ind AS?),
including the rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company’s standalone financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees (), which is its functional currency.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating eycle and other criteria as set out in the Division
11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current

classification of assets and liabilities.

Summary of Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition

The primary source of revenue of the Company is from online advertising. Advertsement income is recognised proportionately over the contractual period
commencing the date when the related advertisement gets placed on the Company’s website and when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of
consideration that will be derived. Revenue from sale and monetisation of content is recognised on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of underlying
agreements. Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring distinct goods or
services to a customer as specified in the contract, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates and excluding amounts collected on behalf
of third parties (for example taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government). Consideration is generally duc upon satisfaction of performance
obligations and the receivable is recognized when it becomes unconditional,

Contract balances

Trade receivables represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, Revenues in excess of invoicing are cor
contract assets and disclosed as unbilled revenue. Invoicing in excess of revenues are considered as contract liabilities and disclosed as unearned revenues. When
a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised and disclosed as advances from

dered as

customers.

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Interest and Dividend income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included
under the head “other income™ in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividend Income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount has been established.

Property, plant and equipments

Fixed asscts - tangibles

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost il capitalisation eriteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Capital expenditure incurred on rented properties is classified as
‘Leaschold improvements’ under property, plant and equipment

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method in accordance with the useful life of assets estimated by the management, which is the rate prescribed under

schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease agreement or the useful life whichever is shorter.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognized as at 1 April 2017
measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the praperty, plant and equipment

Leases

The Company, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset. The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset and the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset. The Company applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases. Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term The
cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date plus any initial dircet costs incurred. The rght-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,

accumulated impairment lo: if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

‘T'he right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of use
assct. The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the

Company uses incremental borrowing rate,




d Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebate less accumulated amortisation/ depletion and impairment
loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended
use,
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and cost can be measured reliably.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.
The Company’s intangible assets comprises assets with finite useful life which are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected useful life.
Computer softwares are amortised on straight line method over an estimated life of 1-3 years, also taking into consideration the underlying license period.
Website and mobile applications are amortised over 5 years and 3 years respectively. Brand name is being amortised over 5 years.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for Intangible Assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at cach reporting date.

e Impairment of non-financial asscts
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated
as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss
previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying

amount.

f Financials Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of
financial asset or financial liability.
Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of
balances with banks, which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within the business whose objective is to hold these assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial asscts are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and selling
financial assets. The Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading in
other comprehensive income.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income on initial recognition, The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss arc
immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Equity instruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net of direct issue cost.
Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. In case of trade receivables, the
Company follows the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments - for recognition of impairment loss allowance. The application of
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk of trade receivables. The Company calculates the expected credit losses on

trade receivables, using a provision matrix on the basis of its historical credit loss experience.

Financial guarantee contracts
ssued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because

Financial guarantee contracts i
the specified debtor fails to make a payment when duc in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially
as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the
higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilites are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously.




De-recognition of Financial Liabilities
The Company de-recognises financial liabilitics when and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company may enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate the foreign currency exposure risk. Derivatives are to be initially recognised at fair
value at the date the derivative contracts are entered and will be subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss will be recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in Statement of Profit and Loss will depend on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Equity Investments

All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value; the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably
elect to measure the same either at FVOCI or FVIPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value changes on an
equity instrument is recognised as ‘other income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI.
Fair value changes excluding dividends and on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI, are recognised in OCI. Amounts recognised in OCI are not
subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying
assct is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits:

Post-employment, long term and short term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays specified contributions towards Provident Fund, Employee State
Insurance and Pension Scheme. The Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years of service with the Company at the time of resignation/ superannuation. The
gratuity is paid @ 15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-
employment benefits is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from
employees’ services.

Re-measurements of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment and other long term benefits are charged to the Other Comprehensive Income.

Other long-term employee benefits

Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation at year end. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.
The Company presents the compensated absences as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual basis.

Employee share based payment

The employees of the Company and its subsidiary reccive remuneration in the form of share-based payments in consideration of the services rendered. Under
the equity settled share based payment, the fair value on the grant date of the awards given to employees is recognised as ‘employee benefit expenses’ with a
corresponding increase in equity over the vesting period. The fair value of the options at the grant date is calculated by an independent valuer using Black
Scholes Model. At the end of each reporting period, apart from the non-market vesting condition, the expense is

reviewed and adjusted to reflect changes to the level of options expected to vest. When the options are exercised, the Company issues fresh equity shares.

Taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the related income tax is also recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income or Equity.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that
are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the
deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right
exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.




Cash and bank balances
Cash and bank balances comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity at the
date of investment of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

Earning per share (EPS)

Basic IEPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing sharcholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of
shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Foreign Currencies Transactions and T'ranslation

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency’s closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that arc measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction.
Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain
or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of

the item.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment [or impairment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. Impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing off the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCIF model. The impairment loss
is recognised if the recoverable amount of the CGU is higher than its value in use or fair value less cost to sell. Impairment losses are immediately recognised in

the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Fair value measurements and hierarchy

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks
existing at cach reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use, or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categotized within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2:Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3:Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
cach reporting period.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, payables towards capital goods, other Bank Balances and cash and cash equivalents are considered to

be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. (Refer Note 29).

(This space bas been intentionally left blantk)




Quintillion Media Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023
(All amount in 2000, unless stated othenwise)

4A  Property, plant and equipment

4B

Particulars

Computer and
Hardware

Plant and
equipment

Vehicles

Office
cquipment

Leaschold
improvements

Furniture and
fittings

Total

Cost or Deemed cost (gross carrying value)
Balance as ar 1 April, 2021

Additions

Disposals

Balance as at 31 March, 2022

Addiions

Disposals

Balance as at 31 March, 2023

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April, 2021

Depreciation for the year

Reversal /adjustment on disposal of assets
Balance as at 31 March, 2022
Depreciation for the year

Disposals
Balance as at 31 March, 2023

Carrying amounts net
As at 31 March, 2022
As at 31 March, 2023

Intangible assets

476.84

347.83

2,079.46

75.00

1,007.38

63.66

4,050.15

2,079.46

75.00

1,007.38

4,050.15

476.84

347.83

476.84

347.83

2,079.46

75.00

1,007.38

63.66

476.84

347.83

1,509.59
170.36

75.00

1,007.38

63.60

3,480.28
170.36

476.84

347.83

1,679.94

75.00

1,007.38

63.66

3,650.64

170.36

170.36

476.84

347.83

1,850.30

75.00

1,007.38

63.66

3,820.99

399,52

399.52

229.16

229.16

Particulars

Intangible
assets

Cost or Deemed cost (gross carrying value)
Balance as at 1 April, 2021

Additions

Disposals

Balance as at 31 March, 2022

Additions

Disposals

Balance as at 31 March, 2023

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April, 2021
Depreciation for the year
Disposals

Balance as at 31 March, 2022
Depreciation for the year
Disposals

Balance as at 31 March, 2023

Carrying amounts net
As at 31 March, 2022
As at 31 March, 2023

10.64

10.64
10.64

10.64




Quintillion Media Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

(Al amount in 000, unless stated otherwise)

Note

Particulars

As at
31 March, 2023

As at
31 March, 2022

5A  Non-current investment (unquotedy*(Measured at Cost)

A

£y
!

()

0}

C

D

‘
Wl

[nvestment in equity shares - Subsidiaries

PAXOTO00 (previous vear: T 216.532) equity shares of 1O cach of Quinillion
Business Medua Linnted (Formerly known as Quintllion Busingss Media Privae
Lamured) (see note 36)

Lesst Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of investments (sce
note:36,37and 38)

35571880 (Previous year: 35,577,880) equity shares of T each ol Quintype
Lechnologics India Limited ( Formerly known as Quintype ‘lechnologics India

Private Lannred)

Investment in debentures - Subsidiaries
Nil {previous year: 59,00,000) oprionally convertible zero coupon debentures of 3
100 cach of Quintillion Business Media Limited (sce note:36¢)

Investment in equity shares - Associates
b provians vear: 5,782 equity shares of 10 each of YK A Media Privare Linuted

Fess: Provision for other than temporary diminution in value of iivestments (see note )

Investments Measured at Fair Value Through Profit & Loss (FVTPL)
Investment in cquity shares - Others
513 (previous yeae: 513) cquity shares of T each of Incloy Teehnologics Private Linuted

Fove Prosiann tar stirer thee renporany divnmution in value ol investmonts (see note 3c)

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments
Refer note no 36,37 38 & 39

402,735.77 15,43,722.47
-1,91,468.87 -12,00,000.00
2,11,266.90 3,43,722.87

3,57,681.84

3,57,681.84

3,57,681.84 3,57,681.84
5,68,948.74 7,01,404.71
- 1,15,314.39

- 1,15,314,39

- 1,15,314.39
75,339.94 75,339.94
-40,000.00 -40) (000,00
35,339.94 35,339.94
35,339.94 35,339.94
6,472.24 6,472.24
-6,472.24 -6,472.24
6,04,288.68 8,52,059.04
8,42,229.79 20,98,531.29
-2,37,941.11 -12,46,472.24




Quintillion Media Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

(AN amount i 2000, unless stated otherwise)

5B

6B

11

Investment - current

Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL,)

In mutual fund - quoted*

TEASR 066203 (previous vear: Nl units in Fdelweiss CRISTE TBN 50:50 Cile Plus 511 April 20057 1.20,133.01 =
50,155.98 ;

1,19,833.32 3

1,20,196.11 B

16502263 tprey ons ve s Sl it 0 Kol Nifly SDLAPR 2027 wop 12 Egual Weight fades Pand |
’ I | 3

LK
8,130.721.455 (previous vear: Nilj units in NIPPON India Nivesh Lakshya Fund - Growih Plan

11,549, 100,598 (previous vewr Nabounis in SBI Crisil IBX Gilt Apnl 2029 - Reg - Grow th

4,10,318.41 -
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 4,10,318.41 -
Aggregate amount of quoted investments at cost 4,09,979.50 -
Other linancial assts - non cuirent
Bank deposit with matuity of more than twelve months* 2,183 7% 6,522.19
2,183.79 6,522.19
Other financial asset-current
Tnterest acerued but not due on fised deposit - 1,441.89
- 1,441.89
Income tax assets (net)
Tay deducted at source 7.305.44 9,072.00
IS recon alid 3602 36.02
7,342.05 9,208.62
Trade receivable *
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Reeeivables from relied parnies
Considered good ) .
Orner I'rade recenables
Considered good -
Considercd doubtful -
Less: Allowanes for expected eredin loss
Considered good (expected eredit loss) g
Considered doubiful - -
* See note BA for debtors ageing
Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash in hand 5.3 406
Balances with banks
1N CUrTent accounts 2,203.80 241.87
in deposit accounts
Deposits with remainiag maturity of more than 12 months! 2,183.79 6,522.19
Less: Amount disclosed as Other non-current assets {refer note 6) -2,183.79 -6,522.19
2,208.89 245.93

 Fixed deposits of T 2183 788 (previous period 6,522,188, are pledged as security with the banks aganst borrowing facilities taken. These fixed

deposits have of IV vears with roll over teem tll expiry of underlving borrowing arrngement.

Loans - current

Loans and advanees

Other current assets
seeurity deposit

Prepaid expenses 53.49 46,09
Balance wuth starutory authoriies 1,424.63 2,256.38
Recevable for sale of sharvey 0.25 0.25
Receables from related party {see note 28) 1,620.30

G100 236.85

Vdvaned ta emplovee

3,162.67 2,533.58




Quintilhon Media Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March, 2023

(A amoune in 2000, unless stared otherwise)

12 Equity share capital As at 31 Mauch, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised
Fquity shares of T [heach 1,530,000 00 500,000,000 1,30,000.410 13,00,000.00
Issued, subscribed & fully paid up
Fiquity Shares of % 10 cach 85,000.00 8,50,000.00 85,000.00 8,50,000.00
Total 85,000,00 8,50,000.00 85,000.00 8,50,000.00

2.1 Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the ¢od of the year

Equity shares

Lalance ar the begmnnimg of the year S5,0000.00) 8,50,000 00 85,000.00 8,50,000.00
Issued during the year - - . :
Balance at the end of the year §5,000.00 #,50,000.00 85,000.00 8,50,000.00

12.2 Deseription of the rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having the par value of T 10 per share. Fach holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share,
M sharcholders are cqually enintled o dividends. ‘The Company will declare and [7.1‘\-' dividend in Indian Rupees, if any. In the event of ligudation of
s ol the Company, after payment of all labilitics, The

the: Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled 10 reecive remaining ass
distnbution will be i proportion o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. The dividend, i any, proposcd by the Board of Dircetors will

[ e g wy ol o e shareholders ithe ensuing annaal el et

123 Details of shares held by cach sharcholder holding more than 5% shares:

Name of sharcholder As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
Y% of holding MNumber % of holding Number
Quint Digral Media Limied (formerly Gauray Mercantiles 100" §5,000 1000 85,000

Linuted) !

100" % 85,000 100" 85,000

M. Raghay Bahl, Ms Riva Kapur, My Mohan Lal Jain, Ms Preceti Jain, Ms Shipa and Mr Pivush Jain hold 1 equity share cach as a nonmnce
r 2 | 3 i Juuty

Ararchobdes o Ot Dhenal Media Limited.

Details of shares held by cach promoters As at 31 March, 2023 As at 31 March, 2022
Name of shaichoider
Quint Digatal Media Limited (formerly Gauray Mercantiles 100% 4 #5,000.00 100" 85,000.00
Limited)*
100" 85,000.00 100" 85,000.00

M Raghae Balil, Als Riva Kapur, Mr Mohan Lal Jain, Ms Pree Jain, Ms Shipa and Mr Piyush Jain hold 1 equity share cach as a nominee sharcholder
of Quint Digict Meda Lannred.
L2 e e b becn saed o conderation oihier than easi or as boinus shares i the curent year and in the List perod immcdiately preceding the

Curtent TCPHRHTAT Yoot

13 Other Equity As at AR 4t
> 31 March, 2023 31 Mazrch, 2022

Capital reserves
Opemng balanee 2,30,085.19 2,30,085.19
-+ Current vear teansler B
(-3 Written back in current vear < =
Closimg balance 2,30,085.19 2,30,085.19
Security premium
Oipening balance 1,50,000.00 1,50,000.00
(+) Current year transler = =
Closing balance 1,50,000.00 1,50,000.00
Retained earnings
( ‘pcl]in:_; balanece -30,82.966.76 -30,99,262.97

Nt pea AN Toss) For the enerent vear 1,63,256.47 16,296.21
Closimg balance -29,19,710.29 -30,82,966.76
Lquity component of compulsorily convertible debentures (see note HA(a))
Openmyg balanc 21,15275.44 19,99,882.22
Increase due to ssuance of debentures during the year - 1,15,393.22
Closing balance 21,15,275.44 21,15,275.44
Equity component of optionally convertible debentures (see note 14A(D))
Upening balanee 6,00.977.79 219991 .86
Increase Jdue to ssuance of debentares during the vear s 3,80,985.93
Closing balance 6,00,977.79 6,00,977.79
Total 1,76,628.13 13,3716




Quintillion Media Private Limited
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Maich, 2023

(AL amoun i 2000, unless stared otherwise)

HA Borrowings - non current

Debentures (Unseeured)

- Compuison comvertible debentures (refer note (a) below) 99.03 108.71
- Optionally converuble debentures {refer note (1) below) 14.29 18.42
113.32 127.13

Less: Current maturines of long-term debr -
113,32 127,13

Total

Details of long-term borrowines:
Note (a): Terms and conditions of issue and conversion of Compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) are as under:

Compulsorily convertible debentures at a interest rate of 0.001% had been issuced at face value 2 100 vide board resolution dated 19 March 2019, I'he
tenure of the debenture will be 5 years. The debentures had originally been issued to Mr Raghav Bahl, director of the Company and were subsequently

sold to Quint Digital Media Limited on 19 January 2022, The conversion of the debenture shall happen at the option of the allotte.

Date of issue

Particulars Number of debentures

Compulsory convertible debentures (CCLDs) 25,00,000
Compulsory convertible debentures ( Js) 25,00,000
canipisnn convernble Jdebientores (CODs) S0,00,0000
Compulsor convertible debentures (CCDs) 25,00,000
Compulsory convertible debentures (G 123) 25,00,000
Compulsory convertible debentures (CC1S) 25,00,000
Compulsory converible debeniures (CCDs) 25,00,000
Compulsory converible debentures (CCDs) 11,54,000
2,11,54,000

Note (b): Terms and conditions of issue and conversion of Optionally convertible debentares (OCDs) are as under:

19 March 2019
03 April 2019
L June 2019
02 July 2019
17 Seprember 2019
23 October 2019
20 May 2020

17 Jan 2022

Oiptonally convertible debentures an a interest rate of 0.001% had been issued a1 face value 100 vide board resolution dated 19 March 2019 The
tenure of the debenture will be 5 years. The debentares had origimally been issued to My Raghay Bahl, director of the Company and were subsequently
sold to Quint Digual Media Linited on 19 January 2022, The conversion of the debenture shall happen at the option of the allotice,

Date of issue

Particulars Number of debentures
Optionally convertible debenture s 15,00,000
Opuonally convertible debentures 7,00,000
Opuoomlly convertible debentures 30,20,000
Opuonally converuble debentures 10,65,000
Optonaliv converrible debentures (Repavment) -2,75,000
Balance as of 31st March,23 60,10,000

4B Borrowings - current
Demand loan

-l'rom banks (rcfer note () and i) below)
Working capital Ceilines

rom banks (rerer note (1) below)

Current matunibies of non-current horrowings (see note 14A)

13 January 2021
19 ebruary 2021
22 April 2021
19 May 2021
12 Jan 2022

5,500.00

275521

8,253.21

(0 Cash eredin facility of up o T NIl (March 31,2022 2 SU000.00 thousand) from Rataakae Bank Limited carrics an interest ar fived deposit e+ 1" .
(March 31, 2022: 7.75% ) and was also repayable on demand. The outstanding balance as on March 31, 2023 under cash credits 1s 2 Nil (March 31, 2022:

T2.753.21 thousand). The facilitics are securcd by a charge over fixed deposit of Rs Nil ( 31 March 22- Rs 4,500.00 thousand).

() Working capital dermand loan Dieility of up e T 7,000.00 thousand (March 31, 2022: F 7,000.00 thousand) from Barclays investment and loans limited
carymng aninterest ar marginal cost of funds based lending rate -+ spread rate per annum and is repayable on demand or maturity. The owstnding,
balance as on 31 March 2023 is  Nil (March 31, 2022: 2 5,500.00 thousand). “The faeility is secured Ly hypothecation on all current assets and movable

fixed :
e Rog

han Banl, Dhrcetor.,

s (meluding wiellectuar property rights and other intangibles) and further by way of personal guarantee from Ms. Ritu Kapur, Dircetor and
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Quintillion Media Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023

AL mount i T000, uoless stated othera 1)

I5A Provisions - non current

16

16A

18

Provision for Gratuity 1,258.03 111.48
Provision for Leave Fneashment 457.56 50.72
1,715.59 162.20
158 Provisions - current
Provasion for Gratiy 26.33 293
Provasion tor Leave ncashment 18.93 232
45.26 5.20
Trade Pavable # -
Due 1o nuero and small cnterprises - -
Due to others 679.29 368.03
679.29 368.03
The details of amounts outstanding o micro enterprises, small enterprises and medium cnterprises based on
Principle amount duc and remaining unpaid
Interest due thereon )
Interest pand - -
Payment made beyond the appointed day during the year - 2
Amount ol interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment excluding inrerest -
specified under MSMIZL Act .
Interest acerued and remaining unpaid - <
Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the suceceding years - -
“See note OB Tor agemyr of Trade payables
hher financiat labilitices
Lrnerest acerued Dut not due on b WO 26.35
Famplovee ducs pavabil 118.04 18,52
118.04 44.87
Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable 434.02 78.41
434.02 78.41

Provision for employee benefits:




Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amount in T'000, unless stated othenvise)

8A Trade receivables ageing schedule
31 March 2023

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Nt Dae Lessthan6 G months -1 1-2years 2-3years More than 3
months year years
Undisputed Trade receivables-considered good - = - -
Undisputed trade receivables-which have significant increase in credit risk - = * 2
Undisputed trade receivables-credit impaired -
Disputed trade receivables-considered good = - - -
Disputed trade receivables-which have significant increase m credit risk - - -
Disputed trade receivables-credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - =
31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Tatal
NitDae Less than 6 6 months - 1 1-2yents S Ayedts More than 3
months year years
Undisputed Trade recewvables-considered good - - - -
Undisputed trade receivables-which have significant inceeasce in credit risk & ¥ = -
Undisputed trade recevables-credhit imparred - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables-considered good - - - -
Disputed trade receivables-which have significant increase in credit risk - o - - -
Disputed trade receivables-credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - -
16B Trade payahles ageing schedule
31 March 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled Not Due Leseihal 1-2 years 2-3 years More:lign:3
year years
(1) Micro and small enterprises - - - - - - -
(ii) Others i 270.00 409.29 - - - 679.29
Total - 270.00 409.29 - - - 679.29
31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled Not Due Liesaiiiand 1-2 years 2-3 years More thiu 3
year years
(1) Micro and small enterprises - - - - -
i) Others - 270.00 98.03 - 368.03
Total - 270.00 98.03 - - - 368.03
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Notes to the financial statcments for the year ended 31 March, 2023

(AL amaunt 0 2000, unless stied otherwise)

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Iavmings per eqoin share

Revenue from operations
Advertisement income
Sale and moncnsanon of content

Subscnption revenue

Other income

Interest income on fixed deposit

Interest ncome others

Iniceest income on Income tas Refund

Profit on Sale of Shares

Liane valuation of investments carried at fir value through profit or loss (Mutual Fund)
Fixeess provision written back

Miscellancous income

Employee benefit expenses
Salaries and wages

Cither Defined beneli

Cither emplovee benehits

AT welline

Finance costs

Interest Charges

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on tingible assets

Depreciation on intangible assets

Qther expense

Vbt and brsaces prometions

Nt loss on foregn currency iransaction and teanslation
Rem

Insurance

T'ravelling and conveyance

Communication expenses

Director sitting fces

1gal and professional charges”

Bank charges

el admisieanee expenses

Daves see note 37 and 38

Rates and taxes

Vchiele running and euntenance
Brokerage and commission

NMiscellancous expenses

*Payment to Auditors
Statutony audi fees including gquarterdy Limited review

Coithier mattoers

Exceptional item
Reversal of provision for Dimunation in the value of investment in a subsidiary (sec note 37 and 38)

Dyimunation in the value of investment (see note 39¢)

Earnings per share (EPS)
1

nings per

s s ianidiing

Year ended
31 March, 2023

Year ended
31 March, 2022

Jurimg the veas, Dilured carings por <hare s computed osing the wey

145.09 474.81
13.81 237586
169.29 =
£ 1461
332.91
27,561.40
26.50 139.21
687.59 30,565.88
3,081.96 1,043.13
100642 75.66
71.56 109.08
. 440
3,259.94 1,231.27
103719 466,38
1,037.19 466.38
170.36 170.36
. 170.36 170.36
55.96
- .04
108.10 104,440
87.85 376.19
60.00 5.10
11.30 3.59
175.00 -
6,529.60 2,143.88
14.50 70.05
.30 80.82
5,000
2499.75
Thbal
37.94
- 14,15
11.98 2402
8,41,532.62 6,184.42
450.00 300.00
125.00
- 20,00
450.00 445.00
-10,08,531.13 -
- 6,472.24
-10,08,531.13 6,472.24

drlutive common cquinalent shares outstanding durmg the year, except where the result would be anti-difunae.

Profit/ (Loss) attributable o cquiny sharcholders
Profit/ (Loss) attnbutable to equuy sharcholder

Weghted average number of equity shares for hasic KPS

justed after the eficer for ditution

I fleet of diluton - weightge average number of potential cquity shares on aceouni of share waerants

asic

Inlured

Pare CEPSY is determined based on the net profit attributable to the sharcholders. Basic carnings per share is computed using the weighted
ad average number of common and

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- 1,63,256.47 16,296.21
1,63,256.47 16,296.21
85,000.00 85,000.00

85,000,000

B3 000,00

192

1.92

RIS
019



Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023
(All amount m 2000, unless stated otherwise)

27  Employee benefits obligations
27.1 Defined contribution plan

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Total

Employer’s contribution to provident fund 100.14 69.66
Employee state insurance scheme = -
Contribution to labour welfare fund = z

100.14 69.66

The Company also has certain defined contributions plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary
as per regulations, Contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by government. The obligation of the group is limited to the amount

contributed and it has no further contractual or constructive obligation.

27.2 Leave obligations

The employees of the company are entitled to compensated abscences. The employees can carry forward a portion of the untilized accrued compensated
absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash compensation at retirement or termination of employement for the utilized compensated absences.

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Present value of the obligation at end 476.48 53.04
Unfunded liability/provision in balance sheet 476.48 53.04
Bifurcation of present value of obligation at the end of the year

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Current liability 18.93 2.32
Non-current liability 457.56 50.72
Total 476.48 53.04

Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Changes in demographic assumptions = =
Changes in financial assumptions -5.39 -2.36
Changes in experience adjustment -23.44 -95.38
Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income -28.82| -97.74
Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Current service cost 8.85 25.33
Interest cost 3.79 9.58
Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss 12.64 34.91
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under:
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 |
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 53.04 141.20
Transfer in/(out) obligation 439.63 -
Current service cost 8.85 25.33
Interest cost 3.79 9.58
Actuarial (gain)/loss -28.82 -97.74
Benefits paid - -25.34
476.48 53.04

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

For determination of the liability of the Company the following actuarial assumptions were used:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Older age

Discount rate 7.50% 7.30%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age (years) 60 60
Average age 47 4091

Withdrawal rate
Younger age 3.00% 3.00%
1% to 2.5% 1.00%

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of TALM (2012 — 14)

Maturity profile of compensated absences

Particulars (Expected Cashflows)

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Year 1 18.93 232
Year 2 19.67 238
Year 3 20.43 245
Year 4 21.21 251
Year 5 176.39 2.58
Year 6 to 10 360.58 12.71
617.19 24.96




Sensitivity analysis to key assumptions for compensated absences

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year

Impact due to increase of 0.5 % 463.41 49.91
Impact due to decrease of 0.5 % 490.14 56.45
b) Impact of the change in withdrawal rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Impact due to increase of 10 % 476,73 53.19
Impact due to decrease of 10% 476.24 52.89
c) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Impact due to increase of 0.5 % 490.40 56.51
Impact due to decrease of 0.5 % 463.05 49.83

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material. Hence impact of change is not calculated above.
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable

being a lump sum benefit on retirement

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same method (present value of defined benefit obligations calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period ) has been applied

as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Risk
Itis the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
o Adverse Salary Growth Experience:Salary hikes that are higher than theassumed salary escalation will result into an
Actuarial Risk . . . A
increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected
. If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate
Investment Risk assumed at the last valuation date can mmpact the liabihty.
Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

: = SE al des isability cases 1 er or higher th ssumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.
Mortality and disability Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities
Withdrawals Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent

o wvaluations can impact Plan’s liability.

Gratuity

‘The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of
5 years are eligible for gratity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed

Amounts gnized in the bal sheet

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Present value of the obligation at end 1,284.36 114.41
Unfunded liability/provision in balance sheet 1,284.36 295.23
Bifurcation of present value of obligation at the end of the year

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Current liability 26.33 2.93
Non-current liability 1,258.03 111.48
Total 1,284.36 114.41

Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

cruarial (gain)/loss
Changes in demographic assumptions

-15.34

-5.85

Changes in financial assumptions

Changes in experience adjustment -22.52 -249.14
Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income -31.85 -254.99
Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Current service cost 18.88 53.84
Interest cost 8.25 20,33
Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss 27.12] 74.17
Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as under;

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 114.42 295.23
Transfer in/(out) obligation 1,180.68 -
Current service cost 18.88 53.84
Interest cost 825 20.33
Actuarial (gain)/loss -37.85 -254.99
Benefits paid - -
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 1,284.37 114.41




Tor determination of the liability of the Company the following actuarial assumpt.ons were used:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Discount rate 71.50% 7.30%
Salary escalation rate 5.00%] 5.00%
Retirement age (years) 60 60
Average age 47 4091
Withdrawal rate
Younger age 3.00% 3.00%
Older ape 1.00%| 1.00%|
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of IALM (2012 — 14)
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Expected cash flows in As at 31 March 2023 | As at 31 March ZUZﬁ
Year 1 20.33 293
Year 2 28.15 2.94
Year 3 30.07 3.19
Year 4 32.09 3.33
Year 5 539.89 349
Year 6 to 10 1,015.67 17.02
1,672,22 32,90
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Impact due to increase of 0.5 % 1,247.20 106.66
Impact due to decrease of 0.5 % 1,323.22 122.88
b) Impact of the change in withdrawal rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Impact due to increase of 10 % 1,285.52 115.02
Impact due to decrease of 10% 1,283.18 11379
b) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
Impact due to increase of 0.5 % 1,306.17 123.04
Impact due to decrease of 0.5 % 1,246.15 106.46

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material. Hence impact of change is not calculated above.

Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable

bemng a lump sum benefit on retirement

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same method (present value of defined benefit obligations calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period ) has been applied

as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Risk

Actuarial Risk

It is therisk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
Adverse Salary Growth Experience:Salary hikes that are higher than theassumed salary escalation will result into an
increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected

. If Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual mvestment return on assets lower than the discount rate
Investment Risk assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Mortality and disability

Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

Withdrawals

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
valuations can impact Plan’s liability.
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28.1
()

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

Related party disclosures

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 the names of the related party where control exists/able to exereise significant influence along with the transactions and

year-end balances with them as identified and certified by the management are given below:

List of related parties and relationship

Holding company

Quint Digital Media Limited (from 19 January 2022)

RB Diversified Private Limited (till 18 January 2022)

Subsidiary companies

Quintillion Business Media Limited (Formarly known as Quintillion Business Media Private Linuted )
Quintype Technolagies India Limited (Formerly known as Quintype Technologies India Private Limited )
Associates

YKA Media Private Limited

Entity under significant influence of directors

RB Diversified Private Limited (from 19 January 2022)

Quint Digital Media Limited (tll 18 January 2022)

Key management personnel

Mr. Raghav Bahl

Ms. Ritu Kapur

Ms. Vandana Malik (Director)

Mr. Piyush Jain (Director)

Related party transactions

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place for the year ended 31 March 2023;

Btiiplde Key management
Particulars Holding company Subsidiary Associate | under common Total
gl personnel
Expensc incurred by Company on behalf of the others
Quintillion Business Media Limited - 11,906.63 - 11,906.63
Expense incurred by others on behalf of the company
Quint Digital Media Limited 73.37 73.37
Collection rceived by company on behalf of others
Quint Digital Media Limited 1,164.81 1,164.81
Gratuity obligation transfer in
Quint Digital Media Limited 1,180.68 1,180.68
Leave encashment obligation transfer in
Quint Digital Media Limited 439.63 439.63
Interest paid on ICD
Quint Digital Media Limited 138.12 - = - 138.12
Loan received and repaid
Quint Digital Media Limited 54,500.00 - - 54,500.00
Investment in rights issue of equity shares
Quintillion Business Media Limited - 54,500.00 - 54,500.00
Conversion of Compulsory convertible debenture to equity of
Quintillion Business Media Limited
Quintillion Business Media Limited - 1,15,314.39 - 1,15,314.39
Closing balancses of Related parties as at 31 March 2023
Ertiphine Key management
Particulars Holding company Subsidiary Associate | under common . Total
R personnel
Other Equity
Quint Digital Media Limited 27,16,253.23 = - - 27,16,253.23
Borrowings - non current -
Quint Digital Media Limited 113.32 - - 113.32
Ovther current assets
Quint Digital Media Limited 1,620.30 - - - - 1,620.30
Related parties with whom transactions have taken place for the year ended 31 March 2022 and closing balances as at 31 March 2022:
Hetetis Key management
Particulars Holding company Subsidiary Associate | under common Total
pra personnel
Expense incurred by Company on behalf of the others
Quintillion Business Media Limited - 14,181.68 - 14,181.68
Expense incurred by others on behalf of the company
RB Diversified Private Limited - 83.25 83.25
Issuance of Compulsory convertible debenture
Raghav Bahl - - - 1,15,400.00 1,15,400.00
Issuance of Optionally convertible debenture
Raghav Bahl - - - - 4,08,500.00 4,08,500.00
Repayment of Optionally convertible debenture
Raghav Bahl - - - 27,500.00 27,500.00
RB Dhversified Private Limited i 3,76,500.00 - 3,76,500.00
Sale of shares
Raghav Bahl 2 E & = 27,499.75 27,499.75
Purchase of Compulsory convertible debenture of Quintillion
Business Mcedia Limited
RD Diversified Pyt Lid - - - 1,15,314.39 - 1,15,314.39
Closing balancses of Related parties as at 31 March 2022
Enterprise Key management
Particulars Holding company Subsidiary Associate | under common Total
control personnel

Other Equity

Quint Digital Media Lin
Borrowings - non current
Quint Digital Media Limited 127.13

27,16,253.23

27,16,253.23

127.13
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Fair value measurement

29.1 Valvation techniques used to determine fair value

instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value.
fied its financial instruments into the three levels

The following explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the fing
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has clas
prescribed under the accounting standard.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods were used to estimate the fair values:-

- I'rade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, other current financial assets, current borrowings, trade payables and other current
financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

- Borrowings, taken by the Company are as per the Company’s credit and liquidity risk assessment and there 1s no comparable instrument having the similar terms
and conditions with related security being pledged and hence the carrying value of the borrowings represents the best estimate of fair value.

- The fair value of investment in mutual funds is measured at quoted price or net asset value (NAV).

There are no transfer between levels during the year

Fair value of assets and liabilities which are measurable at amortised cost for which fair value are disclosed
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
At Amortised cost
Trade receivable - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 2,208.89 2,208.89 24593 245.93
Other financial assets 2,183.79 2,183.79 7,964.08 7,964.08
AtFVIPL
Investments 41031841 4,10,318.41 - -
Financial liabilities
At Amortised cost
Borrowings 113.32 113.32 8,380.34 8,380.34
Trade payables 679.29 679.29 368.03 368.03
Lease liability - - - -
Other financial liabilities 118.04 118.04 44.87 44.87

Financial risk management

Risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
s the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the nsk and the

the Company's risk management framework. This note expl
related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk ‘Trade receivables, cash and cash Aging analysis Diversification of bank deposits and credit limits
cquivalents, other bank balances, and regular monitoring and follow ups

loans and other financial assets, if
any, measured at amortised cost

Liquidity risk Borrowings, trade payables and Cash flow forecasts | Availability of committed credit lines and
other financial liabilities, if any borrowing facilities wherever applicable

Market risk ~ forcign exchange Future commercial Cash flow forecasting [Forward foreign exchange contracts
transactions, recognised financial — [sensitivity analysis

assets and liabilities not
denominated in Indian rupee

Market risk — interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable | Sensitivity analysis Diversification of loans
rates

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial asset fails to meet its contractual obligations, The Company’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each financial asset. The management also considers the factors that may influence the
credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk etc. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments as per agreed terms. This definition of default is determined by considering,
the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

‘The Company monitors its exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis.

The Company closely monitors the eredit-worthiness of the recewvables through internal systems that are confipured to define credit limits of customers, thereby,
limiting the credit risk to pre-caleulated amounts. The Company uses a simplified approach (lifetime expected eredit loss model) for the purpose of computation of
expected credit loss for trade receivables.

Category Inputs Assumptions
Government Information on deductions made by government agencies  [Trade receivables outstanding for more ¢ two
in past ycars years are considered irrecoverable. Also, allowance

for expected credit loss on receivables outstanding
for less than two years is recognised by

expected deductions by government agencies.

ed on

Non-governnent

Indivichunls Individual customer wise trade receivables and information | Trade receivables outstanding for more than two|
obtained through sales recovery follow ups years are  considered irrecoverable.  Other
receivables are considered good due to ongoing
communication with customers.

inst outstanding receivables in past years ‘Trend of collections made by the Company over a
period of four years preceding balance sheet date
ering  default to have occurred if]

Corporates clients and agencies Collection

and  cor
receivables are not collected for more than wo

years.

Orhers Customer wise trade receivables and information obtained  |Specific allowance is made by assessing party wise
iding receivables based on communicauon

through sales recovery follow ups ouls
between sales team and customers.
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilities: (undiscounted)
31 March 2023 Less than L year 1105 years Muore than 5 years Total
Borrowmgs s 113.32 - 113.32
Trade pavables 679.29 - - 679.29
Orher financial labilines 11804 - 118041
Towl 79733 11332 - - 910.65
31 March 2022 Less than Lyear Total
;‘_I i A ] T o MOS0
1 803
AhsT
T 8,600.12 127.12 o 7 §,793.24

30.3 Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company has mtermatonal s

ompany has net hedped s foraen exchange receivables and payables asar 31 Aarch 2023

Particulars As at Jst March, 2023 As at 3st March, 2022
Amount in foreign| Amount in Indian Amount in foreign Amount in Indian
i o currency Rupee curency Rupee
M and oher payanle
L™
T'rade and other receivables
Lsb - =
Clsing rate s at 3 Mareh 2023 (1 USD = 82,1751 GBP = 101.63);(1 Furo = 89-1)
Sensitivity
Ihe sensitivity of profit or s 1o changes o the exchange rtes arises from foreign curreney denommated fimnesl mstoiments,
Particulars Currency  |Exchange rate increase by 1% Lxchange rate decrease by 1"
As at As at As ar As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 Mureh 2023 31 March 2022
Assets
Peande pesen i UsLy
Liabilities T
Fradke pay alie B o Ush - -

(ii) Interest rate risk
he exposure of the Company's horrowmy, to nterest rate changes at the at the end of reportng period are as follows:

The Company's varable e bosrowing is subjeet 10 interest rate risk, Below i the overall exposure ol the borrowing:

31 Marel 2023

31 March 2022

hnterest sates — decrease by 100 Lasis points

Particulars

Borreaings 113.32 8,380.31

Total 113.32 8,380.54

Sensitivity

P tie e bss i st s Bighordeseer initereat cspense Teom borrowings as i e CE L IRCECST s, .

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Brecest rates — merease by 100 bosas pomis 113 B3RO0
113 -83.60

ase oblganon and deterred payment habilines are e ised ve.

Fravance

304 Capital management
The Company’s objectives when m,
Tor ensure Company's ability 1o continue s 4 poing concern, and

wging captal e

- Tovmamenn optmuon capital siroeniee and 1o reduce cost ol capital
M b requirenienis e order o mamain an cft
whustments e the light of dinges i cconomic conditions

ient overdl financing structure,

ement s

SECS 11 G

the Company manages the capinal structure and makes

1 the visk charactensoes of the underdying assers: The Company s nor subjeer o esternally

mip capbil egquarement, The € s capital requi nts by overscone the pearmg, ratio:

Particulars As a1 31 March 2023 | As at 31 March 2022
Tonal borrowmgs 113.32 8,380,341
Total ety 10,26,628.13 #,63.371.66
Net debt to equity ratio 0.01% 0.97%
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31 Financial Ratios

Followmng are the tatios computed for the period/year:

Limited)

Ratios Tuit Buasis Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Curvent Rato T Current A 325.62 0,48
Currem Laabilities
Debr-liquity Rauo Times 0.0001 0.01
Total Sharcholders Fquity
Debr Serviee Coverage Rato Times arnings Llor Jebt 12.92 1154
Debt service
Rerarm on Lgan Ratier/ Returie on investment Percentage Profit Miee” 16" o el
Average Sharcholders Fquity
Inventory Turnover Rano Times Cost ol Goods Sold NA NA
Mg Inventory
Trade Receivables wrnover ratio Times Revenue from operations Nil Nil
\verage 'Trade Reccivables
Net Capital turnover rtio I'imes Revenue from Operations Nil Nil
Total quity
Nt protit rann Percentage 16" e
Retarn on Capaad Eployed Perceniage -1Ma 3

“Capital Limployed = Tangible Not Worth + Toral Debt, Tangible Net worth = Total asseis - Otber intangilile assets - Intangible assets under

development- Goodwill
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Operating leases
The Company had taken its registered premises on operating lease. It is a short term lease and has no escalation terms and lease periods are
extendable by a mutual consent on expiry of the lease. Tease payments during the period recognised in the statement of profit and loss amount to ¥

60,000 (previous year: T 60,000). There are no long term operating leases as at 31 March 2023,

Income and Expenditure in Foreign currency
There is no expenditure and earning in foreign currency in the current year ended 31 March 2023 and previous year ended 31 March 2022.

Segment information

The Company has one business unit based on its products and has one reportable segment. The Company operates in a single reportable operating
segment ‘Media Operations’. Hence there are no separate reportable segments in accordance with Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments”. Since the
Company’s operations are primarily in India, it has determined single geographical segment.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure

CSR amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereto by the Company during the year is
Nil (Previous year Nil).

Investment in equity shares of Quintillion Business Media Limited

) Quintillion Media Limited had purchased 5,09,53,167 equity shares of Quintillion Business Media Limited (QBM) from Bloomberg 1.P (which held
25.97% stake in QBM) for a total consideration of USD 1/- (Rs 84.28) on 3 February 2023, pursuant to share purchase agreement dated 10 January
2022 and amended on 1 February 2023.

b) The Board of Directors of the subsidiary company QBM in the meeting held on 16 March 2023, had approved the Rights issuc to the equity
sharcholders of the Company to issue 54,50,000 equity shares for a consideration of Rs 54,500 thousand. The offer closed on 23 March 2023 and
Quintillion Media Limited the holding company had subscribed to and has been allotted 54,50,000 equity shares.

¢) Quintillion Media Limited had an investment of Rs 1,15,300 thousand in 59,00,000 Optionally Convertible Zero Coupan Debenture (OCZCD) of
Rs 100 each in QBM. The borad of directors of QBM on 18 March 2023 have approved the conversion OCZCD into 5,90,00,000 equity share of Rs
10 cach in QBM. Subsequently Quintillion Media Limited has converted the 59,00,000 number of debentures into 5,90,00,000 equity shares of Rs 10/-

cach.

Sale of Quintillion Business Media Limited

Quint Digital Media Limited and its subsidiaries Quintillion Media Limited and Quintillion Business Media Limited had signed share purchase
agreements on 13 May 2022 with AMG Media Networks, a whelly owned subsidiary of Adani Enterprises, to conclude the divestment of 49% stake in
Quintillion Business Media Limited. Pursuant to the meeting of Board of Directors of Quintillion Media Private Limited on 20 June 2022, the Board
had approved the sale of 49% equity stake in Quintillion Business Media Limited, held by Quintillion Media Limited to AMG Media Networks
Limited (AMG Media). Quintillion Business Media Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of Quintillion Media Limited, prior to sale of stake, owns and
operates an exclusive business and financial news digital media platform viz. www.bgprime.com (formerly known as www.bloombergquint.com).
AMG Media Networks held by Adani group was set up for its foray into media businesses. The deal was executed on 27 March 2023. ‘The Company
has received total consideration of Rs 4,78,374.49 thousand for sale of 12,77,03,653 equity shares.

Negative net worth in a subsidiaries

The Company’s Subsidiary Quintillion Business Media Limited as at 31 March 2023 has accumulated losses amounting to 23,216,792.39 thousand
(previous year: T 2,968,530.91 thousand) which has resulted in a net worth of Rs -82,428.47 thousand (previous year negative 120,926.98 thousand) of
the aforesaid Subsidiary . As BloombergQuint platform have shut down its television division because of the inability to get a broadcast licence from
the government, the Company Quintillion Media Pvt Ltd has decided diminution in value of its investment in Quintillion Business Media and to make
a provision of Rs 12,00,000.00 thousand (Rs One hundred and twenty crores) in the financial year ended 31 March 2021 which has been charged to it
profit and loss account.

During the current year ended 31 March 2023, The Company has sold 49% of its stake in QBM to AMG Media Networks Limited. The sale has
resulted in a loss on Rs 8,32,427.088 thousand to the Company. The Company has written back proportionate provision for diminution in investment
in QBM amounting to Rs 10,08,531.13 thousand in its profit and loss account as an exceptional item.

Other Investments

The Company had invested in T 40,000.00 thousand in YKA Media Private Limited comprising 2,882 equity shares of 2 10 each at a premium.
Pursuant to negative cash flows and significant erosion of net worth of Owlet Films Media Private Limited and YKA Media Private Limited, the
Company has provided for the entire carrying value of the aforementioned investments

The Company has further invested in 200,00 thousand Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (“CCDs”) of Rs 100 each of YKA Media Private
Limited. Each subscription CCD carries an interest rate of 25% per annum to be compounded annually, calculated from the date of issnance of CCDs.
The CCDs of Rs 20,000.00 thousand along with interest of Rs 15,339.94 thousand have been converted to 2,846 equity shares during the year ended
31 March 2022,

Quintilhon Media Limited had, in earlier years, invested ¥ 27,500.10 thousand in Owlet Films Media Private Limited comprising of 10 equity shares
of % 10 each and 275,000 compulsorily convertible preference shares of 2 100 each. During the year ended 31st March 2022, long term investments in
100 equity shares in Owlet Films Media Private Limited had been sold for Rs 14.71 thousand resulting in a profit of Rs 14.61 thousand & 275.00
thousand CCPS in Owlet Films Media Private Limited had been sold for Rs 27,485.04 thousand to Mr Raghav Bahl.

In another transaction 250 Fquity Shares of Four Wheel India Private Limited have been sold off for a total consideration of Rs 250 . The sale has
resulted in loss of Rs 2,499.75 thousand to the Company in the year ended 31 March 2022,

During the previous year ended 31 March 2022, provision for diminution in investment of Rs 6,472.24 thousand in Inclov Technologics Private
Limited had been made as the Company Inclov Technologies Private Limited had filed for liquidation and presently had been dissolved.




Quintillion Media Limited (Formerly known as Quintillion Media Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Allamount in R'000, unless stated otherwisc)

40 Provisions, contingent liabilities and capital commitments
The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligarion as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resources and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

The Company does not have any contingent liability and capital commitments as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

41 Disclosure of material impact of CoVID~-19 pandemic on the Company under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in the preparation of the financial
statements including the recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non financial assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible
future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of approval of these financial statements,
used various sources of information and economic forecasts.
As the operations of the Company is in digital media, there has been no immediate impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the profitability. The Company
does not see a direct impact of the CoVID-19 pandemic outbreak. The Company has evaluated the impact of the pandemic on the operations and will
undertake necessary disclosures, as may be required.

42 Other statutory information
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.
(i1) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(1)) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto curreney or Virtual Curreney during the financial year.

(v)The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a)direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b)provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi)The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b)provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vi))The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income T'ax Act, 1961 (such as, scarch or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961)

As per our report of even date
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